Wiltshire Council

————— e —

AGENDA

Meeting:  Health Select Committee

Place: Kennett, County Hall, Bythesea Way, Trowbridge, BA14 8BS
Date: Tuesday 4 July 2023
Time: 10.30 am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Cameron Osborn, of Democratic
Services, County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line or email

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
Clir David Bowler Clir Tony Pickernell
Clir Clare Cape Clir Horace Prickett
Cllr Mary Champion CliIr Pip Ridout
Clir Dr Monica Devendran Clir Tom Rounds
Clir Howard Greenman Clir Mike Sankey
ClIr Johnny Kidney (Chairman) Clir David Vigar

Clir Gordon King (Vice-Chairman)

Substitutes:

ClIr Liz Alstrom ClIr Kelvin Nash
CliIr Trevor Carbin Clir Jack Oatley
Clir Mel Jacob Clir lan Thorn

Stakeholders:
Irene Kohler Healthwatch Wiltshire
Diane Gooch Wiltshire Service Users Network (WSUN)
Mary Reed Wiltshire Centre for Independent Living (CIL)



http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes
within the Council.

By submitting a statement or question for a meeting you are consenting that you may be
recorded presenting this and that in any case your name will be made available on the
public record. The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer,
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
questions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link.
Our privacy policy is found here.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 2


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Democracy%20Privacy%20Policy&ID=5980&RPID=33929105

AGENDA
Apologies
To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting.
Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 20)
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2023.
Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by
the Standards Committee.

Chairman's Announcements
To note any announcements through the Chairman.
Public Participation

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.

Statements

If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 3
speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further
clarification.

uestions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council
received in accordance with the constitution.

Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than
5pm on (4 clear working days, e.g. Wednesday of week before a
Wednesday meeting) in order to be guaranteed of a written response. In order
to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no later than 5pm on
(2 clear working days, eg Friday of week before a Wednesday meeting).
Please contact the officer named on the front of this agenda for further advice.
Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter
is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

Page 3



10

11

Community Health Services

e To update the Select Committee on the progress of the Integrated
Community based services Programme, including an outline of the aim
and purpose of this programme, the link to the ICP strategy, and key
milestones/timelines.

e To inform the Committee on the ICB and its partners plans to ensure
continuity of provision of services to local communities during the
programme.

Carers Strategy

A presentation to describe co-production to date, which has shaped the
Council’s all-age Carers Strategy. It sets out a draft vision, priorities and a set of
actions which will help us to realise that vision and support carers of all ages in
Wiltshire.

Better Care Fund Plan (Pages 21 - 28)

A presentation outlining how the Council plans to use the better care fund to
deliver the national conditions as required by government. This is a central
government fund aimed at supporting better integration between health and
social care services. We are required to submit a two-year plan that sets out
how the Wiltshire system intends to use the funding to enable people to stay
well, safe and independent at home for longer and to provide the right care at
the right place at the right time.

Forward Work Programme (Pages 29 - 32)

The Committee is invited to review its forward work programme in light of the
decisions it has made throughout the meeting.

Urgent Items

To consider any other items of business that the Chairman agrees to consider
as a matter of urgency.

Date of Next Meeting

To confirm the date of the next meeting as 5 September 2023 at 10:30 am.

Page 4



Wiltshire Council

——————

Health Select Committee

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 8 JUNE
2023 AT KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD, TROWBRIDGE,
BA14 8JN.

Present:

Cllr Johnny Kidney (Chairman), Clir Gordon King (Vice-Chairman), Cllr David Bowler,
Clir Clare Cape, ClIr Dr Monica Devendran, Clir Howard Greenman,

Clir Tony Pickernell, Clir Pip Ridout, Clir David Vigar, Mary Reed, Diane Gooch, and
Irene Kohler

Also Present:
Kate Blackburn, Clir lan Blair-Pilling, Clir Jane Davies, ClIr Richard Clewer, ClIr Tony
Jackson and CliIr Elizabeth Threlfall

29 Election of Chairman

Councillor Johnny Kidney was elected as Chairman for the year 2023/24.

30 Election of Vice-Chairman

Councillor Gordon King was elected as Vice-Chairman for the year 2023/24.

31 Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Mike Sankey, Clir Mary
Champion, and Cllir Tom Rounds.

32 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

Resolved:

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 28 February 2023
as atrue and correct record.

33 Declarations of Interest

Clir Clare Cape declared that she worked for NHS England in a national
capacity, and the Chairman declared that he was Wiltshire Council’s
Stakeholder Governor at the RUH.

Page 5



34

35

36

Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman announced that since the last Committee meeting, Members had
attended a briefing on the Good Lives Alliance retender, expressing that the
contract was felt to allow for flexibility in being able to provide person-centred
care. From an ongoing scrutiny perspective, there was interest in being able to
carry out an independent review of providers, such as the Trusted Assessor
Scheme run by the Wiltshire Care Partnership.

The Chairman announced that there had also been a Chair’s briefing for both
Heath Select Committee and Children’s Select Committee on the Public Health
Nursing Services Future Delivery model.

The Chairman announced that the Committee were due to be briefed on the
Carers’ Support Strategy and retender, but that this was put on hold and so the
Committee looked forward to receiving an update in due course.

Finally, the Chairman announced that both he and the Vice-Chairman had
received and submitted a response to Quality Accounts from the South West
Ambulance Service and the two providers in attendance: AWP and Wiltshire
Health and Care.

Public Participation

There was no public participation.

Wiltshire Health and Care Service Update

Stephen Ladyman and Shirley-Ann Carvill of Wiltshire Health and Care
provided an update to the Committee on their organisation’s services and
challenges over the last year. They described the challenging times that
healthcare had faced, both societal and financial. However, they also
emphasised the successes they had achieved in that time, with progress being
made towards the plans laid out last year, such as the response to Long Covid
and the successful pilot of NHS@Home (Virtual Ward).

The Committee asked questions of the 2-hour urgent care response times, the
potential for better promotion surrounding flow hubs and the possibility of
initiatives to target long waiting lists.

Resolved:

To note the content of the report and to schedule an update in 2024 to
follow progress on any stand-out issues.

Page 6



37

Dementia Care Strategy

Robert Holman, the Commissioning Transformation Lead, reported to the
Committee on the progress being made towards developing Wiltshire Council’s
updated Dementia Care Strategy. He explained that they were currently co-
producing the Strategy with hundreds of partners and individuals. He described
the massive human cost involved in dementia care and the significant
contribution from informal carers, as well as the need to consider carers as well
as patients in the new strategy. Other points raised included the need to support
younger people diagnosed with dementia and the need for more certainty
surrounding care plans for those diagnosed.

The Committee sought further information on how the strategy proposed to
engage with individuals reluctant to engage back and on if the strategy
accounted for gaps in effective provision across the county. Questions were
also asked about if there was a plan to address recruitment issues in care
homes. Enquiries were raised about the possibility of taking specific steps to
increase the rate of diagnosis, and the importance of making communities
dementia-friendly. The committee discussed the successful work undertaken in
Bradford-on-Avon to that end, linking it to the important role Area Boards can
play in the strategy. The Committee also discussed if the conversation
surrounding dementia was sufficiently prominent in communities. Attention was
drawn to the sessions being run by Alzheimer's Support and the possibility of
greater promotion.

Councillor Tony Jackson asked if the strategy foresaw the utilisation of
screening programmes and the possibility of using disease-modifying
treatments, to which the Commissioning Transformation Lead agreed to feed
back at a later date.

Resolved:

1) To note the progress that has been made with developing the
dementia care strategy.

2) To request an opportunity to review the strategy and an
implementation plan if possible.

3) To receive an update in 2024 to understand the impact of the
strategy once it is implemented.

4) To support the involvement of Area Boards in promoting dementia-
friendly towns.

Page 7



38

39

Measuring Performance in Adult Social Care

Tamsin Stone, Head of Performance, Outcomes and Quality, was then invited
to talk the Committee through a presentation on the KPIs being used in Adult
Social Care. The presentation gave an overview of the current KPIs being used
to monitor Adult Social Care, highlighting the important role played by
Performance Outcome Groups (POGSs). The presentation also drew attention to
the need to remain objective rather than being drawn into comparisons with
other Local Authorities, and the need to carefully set targets to account for data
variability.

The Committee asked questions on what data was held pertaining to staffing
and referral. The Leader of the Council, Councillor Richard Clewer, suggested
that the Committee considered the wider range of metrics that would soon be
made available from the Integrated Care Partnership. Similarly, Councillor Cape
reminded the Committee of their scheduled commitment to review these system
metrics. The Committee discussed the best way to measure the KPIs until the
Chairman suggested they receive an update in approximately six months and
hold an inquiry session in the meantime.

Resolved:

1) To scrutinise the Key Performance Indicators on a six-monthly
basis with timing to be guided by officers.

2) For the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to identify and propose a
broader range of health and wellbeing KPIs for approval by the
Committee.

Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership Trust

The Chairman welcomed Alison Smith, Deputy Chief Executive of Avon and
Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership Trust (AWP) and Alexandra Luke and
invited them to give an overview of their work in providing healthcare to people
with mental illnesses, learning disabilities and autism and an update on their
transformation programme.

The Deputy Chief Executive expressed her apologies for not getting the report
to the Committee in time for the meeting and explained that as a result she
would speak to the data more broadly and ensure the report was sent out as
soon as possible.

Alexandra Luke described AWP’s work on delivering advice and guidance to
those with mental illness, explaining that they were the first area to offer this
guidance on mental health after the pilot scheme in Bath and North East
Somerset.

The Committee sought clarity on if there was any distinction in the data between
different types of mental illnesses and on the scope of training for nurses,
referring to the rarity of recruiting internationally for mental health practitioners
and nurses. The Deputy Chief Executive explained that as a secondary

Page 8



40

provider, AWP did not have different data sets for different mental illnesses and
stated that recruitment was not as relevant a challenge for mental health
treatment, noting an ongoing training programme with a national recruiter. She
concluded by stating that regardless of the outcome of an upcoming report from
the Care Quality Commission (CQC), a review was desirable to ensure the
continuation of their improvement plan and that they were aware of several
areas to improve upon already.

Resolved:

1) To circulate the report from Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health
Partnership Trust to the Committee and forward any questions from
the Committee to AWP for aresponse.

2) To invite Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership Trust back
for another update in 2024.

Rapid Scrutiny Report - NHS Dental Services

Introducing the next item, the Chairman reminded the Committee of their
agreement in February to carry out a rapid scrutiny of NHS dental services
before responsibility for commissioning was transferred from NHS England to
the Integrated Care Board (ICB). He then referred the Committee to the report
from the scrutiny carried out on 29 March, thanking the input of Jo Lawton of
NHS England and Jo Cullen from the ICB. He summarised the main findings as
being that Wiltshire residents need greater access to NHS dental services, the
ICB would face significant challenges in improving services, ongoing scrutiny
was needed, and that more information was desired on the work being done to
improve access to health services in disadvantaged communities.

The Chairman then called on the Cabinet Member for Public Health, Councillor
lan Blair-Pilling, to speak to the item.

Councillor Blair-Pilling summarised the rapid scrutiny session as sitting in the
foothills of a mountain of a learning curve, explaining that dental care was
remarkably different and distinct from other forms of healthcare. He emphasised
that while it was important for scrutiny to make its own choices, this work could
benefit from being conducted as a joint enterprise with the ICB, with updates
coming from both.

The Director of Public Health, Kate Blackburn, suggested the recommendation
that the Public Health team bring a report on inequality back to Committee
covering public health and dental care was of such a scale so as to necessitate
collaboration with the ICB as part of a system approach. The Director
suggested that rather than a massive report, a focus on dental provision and
access would be more suitable and achievable, as well as bringing in the work
being done by the Wiltshire Health Inequalities Group’s work.

The Chairman noted The Director’s point and invited the Leader of the Council’s
input.

Page 9



Councillor Clewer noted the new structure of the Integrated Care System
involving the ICB and the Integrated Care Partnership. He advised that it could
prove unproductive for too many Councils to be trying to assess the issues
processes of the Integrated Care System before it was on its own two feet. He
suggested that the work would be better suited to the Integrated Care
Partnership as one of their statutory requirements.

The Committee discussed the issue further, with Councillor David Vigar
highlighting that unnecessary reports were to be avoided and that instead,
regular updates were all that was required. Councillor Cape noted that one of
her key takeaways from the report was that the root cause of issues with dental
provision was the way in which the payment system for dentists operated. She
suggested that until that systemic issue was properly addressed at a national
level, the Committee were unlikely to make any significant progress in
improving dental service provision. The Director of Public Health agreed that
while there was work they could undertake to address issues surrounding
inequality, the fundamental problems they faced were national ones. Councillor
Clewer added that the area was essentially dysfunctional and that the ICB
would need time to decipher and then address it. Councillor Blair-Pilling stated
that the priority of Public Health was addressing inequality, and that was work in
which they could make headway, establishing links of communication and
ensuring people are better informed.

Resolved:

To endorse the recommendations of the NHS Dental Services Rapid
Scrutiny Group, with recommendation i) amended to read as follows: To
request performance updates on NHS dentistry from Public Health and the
Integrated Care Board, including areas of high deprivation.

Page 10



41

42

43

44

RUH & Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Quality Accounts

The Chairman presented to the Committee the Quality Accounts published by
the Royal United Hospital (RUH) in Bath and the Salisbury NHS Foundation
Trust for questions or comments.

Councillor Vigar stated that generally, the accounts were brilliant, expressing
praise for the way the report was structured. He expressed confusion regarding
the apparent lack of correlation between certain objectives and outcomes but
was otherwise impressed. Councillor Cape similarly praised the layout of the
reports and the use of charts.

The Chairman explained that he and the Vice-Chairman would construct their
own feedback outside the meeting but would be sure to include the comments
of the Committee.

Resolved:

For the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman to submit a response to the
Quality Accounts of the Royal United Hospital and Salisbury NHS
Foundation Trust that would incorporate the comments of the Committee.

Forward Work Programme

Cllr Vigar suggested adding the data discussed by the Committee to the
Forward Work Plan, to which the Chairman agreed subject to a discussion to
decide how best to work them in.

Resolved:

1) To add the resolutions from the meeting to the Forward Work Plan.
2) To approve the Forward Work Plan.

Urgent Items

There were no urgent items.

Date of Next Meeting

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 4 July 2023 at 10:30am.

(Duration of meeting: 10:30 am - 12:55 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Cameron Osborn of Democratic

Services, e-mail: cameron.osborn@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line 01225 713114 or email
communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 11


mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Minute Item 39

Avon and Wiltshire NHS Partnership Trust — Performance Update

Wiltshire Health Select Committee Date: 10" May 2023
Author: Jason Everett, AWP Operational Lead for Wiltshire

Wards: All Wards

Parishes Affected: All Parish Area

1. Purpose and Reasons

This report provides the Wiltshire Health Select Committee with an update of performance and
key issues relating to Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust.

2. Recommendations

The Committee is recommended to:

2.1 Note the report.
3. Detail

3.1 Wiltshire Performance Activity

This report provides an overview of Wiltshire AWP services performance using latest available data
(May 2023) for most indicators.

Access

Referral to assessment 28 day compliance

Monthly referrals into Primary Care Liaison

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

| - e e» » Average =@ Total referrals |

Wiltshire has 2 primary care liaison services. The North team based in Devizes and south, based in
Salisbury. Last Month the teams received at total of 416 referrals, 190 in the north and 226 south
respectively.

At present (and as per the chart below indicates) we are not meeting the performance against the
referral to assessment target for both teams, as such we are currently are risk assessing all referrals and
priority is given to those people who present with greatest risk and need.

Page 23



Avon and Wiltshire NHS Partnership Trust — Performance Update

Wiltshire Health Select Committee

Date: 10" May 2023

100%

2% of asssessments started within 4 weeks

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

S U O A A A T P A P P g
B S S 53 (_)Q,Q, OC‘: S Q‘zf‘/ NS & @ ?.Q«
= e e » Target =@ % performance
Assessment detail for April
PCLS TEAM Total Seen under | Seen over | waiting for Waiting | Waitng
Assessed 28 days 28 days assessment less more
than 28 | than 28
days days
North 120 68 52 255 113 142
South 131 69 62 238 121 117

In total last year 6121 people were referred to the primary care liaison services in Wiltshire.

There are significant challenges in meeting the referral to assessment performance indicator, the causes

are multi factorial. The 2 main contributor factors are:

The volume of referrals continue to increase year on year, as issues relating to mental wellbeing become

more prominent but the number of people who actual required to be referred for ongoing secondary
specialist mental health services remains low at an average of 13%.

In addition to an increase in volume of referrals the teams’ capacity to undertake assessment is

compromised in both teams. The North PCLS team has 6.3 wte filled of an establishment of 9.1 (this
excludes any sickness absence numbers). We have 2.15 agency staff on long lines I=working into the
team to also try to mitigate the impact of vacancies.

In the south the staffing challenges are even more notable with 1.8 wte in post from a establishment of
7.1 wte and an additional 1.9 agency staff in south These are the staff who will undertake the front line
assessments

In addition both teams have a senior practitioner and a team manager who can support the teams and
clinical assessments. In addition the teams have 2 clinical associate practitioners (caps) roles who can

Page 18



Avon and Wiltshire NHS Partnership Trust — Performance Update

Wiltshire Health Select Committee Date: 10" May 2023

offer brief interventions to people accessing the services. These roles have been developed by the trust
over the past couple of years and have been a valuable addition to the service.

In order to try to address the issue of demand and as part of the transformation of mental health
services and to help address the issue of timely access, as a system we have been working closely with
third sector partners to work on transforming access to services and ensuring that people get the most
appropriate support when required.  In Wiltshire this alliance is with “access mental health” who are a
partnership of Alabare (south) and Rethink (north), we are working closely with them to reshape the
model so that they transform towards being the “front door” for services and that we work seamlessly
as a collaborative, so that when access to a registered mental health professional is required for an
assessment of mental health this can be done in a timely manner, but if they require advice support and
guidance around mental wellbeing matters, these are addressed by a more appropriate service.

This transformational process is in its early stages. A pilot was undertaken by access mental heath
being based in a local gp surgery in North Wiltshire and in the duration of that pilot only one referral
was required into the north CMHT from that surgery. A more detailed analysis of the findings are being
undertaken by access mental health and work is required on how to scale up these pilots but initial
feedback has been positive.

Memory assessment Talking Therapies
within 4 weeks treatment - in 18 weeks
100% 93% 93% 9% 120%
—mecempeeee == 100% 100% 99% 99% 99% 99%
80% 69% % 100% - - - - = -
80%
60%
60%
40%
40%
20% 20%
0% 0%
T 0 0 0, T . 0 0, 0
A A (e (- (R | A (G (- L
%0 QQ/ \’b(\ <<Q\/o @'b ?SE éo 0?/ \’bQ (<Q\/0 @’b ?.Q
. % complete e e e Target . % complete e e e Target

Memory service referral to assessment

Following a review of how we deliver this service and the introduction of rapid assessment and diagnosis
(RAD) clinics the dementia teams. The RAD clinics provide a one stop shop for assessment, the giving of
diagnosis and if indicated a prescription. As a result of their introduction the teams have shown
continued and sustained improvement trajectory in the area of timely dementia diagnosis and April was
the first time we have met this metric, after 2 months where we were hovering just below at 93.1%.

Talking Therapies treatment

Page 1%



Avon and Wiltshire NHS Partnership Trust — Performance Update

Wiltshire Health Select Committee Date: 10" May 2023

Talking therapies continue to implement waiting list reviews to ensure where possible patient
availability is met within 18 weeks of referral. Talking Therapies have received a steady increase in
referrals over the last 6 months which has increased the number of patients on our waiting list
caseloads. However they have been able to maintain an 18 week wait for treatment from moving staff
resources to any projected longer waits and also continue to be supported by other BSW Talking
Therapies Services for remote treatment requests whilst they implement strategies to increase our
staffing in line with the NHS National Team plan.

Discharge follow-up Treatment in 2 weeks for
(within 72 hours) patients with psychosis
100%  geo, 90%  goo 88% 120% (o

79% 79% 91%

80% -l - - - 100% 26% i )
80% 70% 75% 75%

60%
60% -

40%
40%

20% 0%

0% 0%
e v o v s o
> D D '»Q D D

el el el
3% \% 3%

N < < Neg N NS < < Neg NG
S KX N «@ L& R $o N N «@ @’b S
| % complete e e e » Target | | % complete e e == » Target |

We continue to perform well for our 2 week referral to treatment target for people with a first
presentation of psychosis.

In relation to 72 hours follow up to discharge, despite challenges with inpatient flow and often short
notice discharges we continue to meet this key metric (the first few days after discharge are the riskiest
in regards to risk of self harm/ suicide/ relapse). The majority of these breaches tend to relate to
“narrative breaches” whereby there is a reason that the follow up could not occur, rather than there
being a failure of process, or to arrange follow up as part of the discharge plan (process errors).

Delayed Transfers of Care

Delayed Transfers of Care Days delayed, by reason (2022-23)

25%
21% .
20% Awaiting other care [l

20%  18% 18%
15% 14% 130 4% 14% Wh Awaiting package of care [
10% 1%

10% Awaiting care home (nursing) I
% Awaiting care home (non-nursing) | NN
%

”)

Q

ing |
O DD y Housing
Q Q Q Q Q Q Q'
(\, ’1/ %fb Q’ A’ (, (\' ‘0% ¢
@b N N W 0" ¥ ¥ v ¢ @b R patient / family choice |  IIIEEN

v

Q

¥ ¢ )
» o>
S P

’ B 5 DTOC = = =Target ‘ 0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000

There remains an ongoing challenge with our ability to flow patients in and out of our wards and whilst
we work incredibly closely with our colleagues in the ICB and Local Authority and meet weekly to try to
reduce the number of delays this still remains problematic.

Page 18



Avon and Wiltshire NHS Partnership Trust — Performance Update

Wiltshire Health Select Committee Date: 10" May 2023

For the older adult inpatient population the main challenge is the availability of onward specialist
nursing/ care homes for people who are unable to return home. For adults inpatients there have been
significant challenges with people awaiting housing/ onward accommodation and there are meetings
set up with colleagues in Wiltshire housing to see if we can mitigate this going forward/ work more
closely however, there remains a lack of social housing in Wiltshire which adds to this challenge and
wellbeing houses are unable to accept people without onward discharge plans so we are unable to
effect safe discharge plans for some people who no longer require to be on an inpatient ward.

Patient/ carer experience

Friends and Family Test (26 of positive responses)

T

| I %% positive response e e = » England average (Feb 2023) |

100%

20% e ————
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

q/@')’ ,\9'\9’ Q'\,"' fé\i" . . ,9'\,

\
N NS

s v

The experience of people who use our local services is overall positive and we benchmark around the
average for services in England.

Insert bit about involvees/ carers from ¢

Effective Workforce

Staff Appraisals Staff training
o 1% gosg OO0 o 10035 o19c 92% 93%  93%  gha.
— —— — —-— (=T 0 — — —-— ——
B0
7O
ST
e
| B
ETacS
2094
1024
0%
L -5 o s 5 . s o B 5
S s ~o"’& S i e 0:155" S S S
<o ~F « =& v <o N = = S
| G complete — T arget S complete —— o Target |

There are significant work force challenges in Wiltshire and it is really important to that we grow and
develop our existing workforce and make Wiltshire and attractive place to work. Supporting staff
through regular supervision and appraisals is really important

As a locality we should employ 635 member of staff from all grades of role, we currently have 165 wte
vacancies across our inpatient and community services and are currently mitigating these vacancies

Page 13



Avon and Wiltshire NHS Partnership Trust — Performance Update

Wiltshire Health Select Committee Date: 10" May 2023

through the use of 146 temporary staff via bank/ agency lines of work (approximately 23% of our total
work force).

We have been keen to embrace new roles for example the Clinical Associate Psychologist as described
earlier, mental health wellbeing practitioner roles, who offer psychological intervention to people in our
secondary services.

We have also successfully operated the think ahead scheme in Wiltshire attracting and training several
cohorts of newly qualified social workers into our community teams. We are now working to role this
scheme out the rest of BSW based on local success.

We are also introducing MPAC (multi-professional approved/ responsible clinicians) in a number of our
Wiltshire inpatients, to support the inpatient pathways and are looking to create roles beneath this for
advanced clinical practitioners.  We currently have 2 trainee MPACs 1 working in older adults; one
based in adult acute ward and 1 graduated Mpac in Picu, alongside 2 staff working towards their ACP
role, one baed in dementia services and one in a community mental heath team.

We are also exploring the feasibility to be able to implement nurse associate roles within the locality, so
that we have a training route for our unregistered staff to gain a professional registration and potentially
into full registered nurse status.

3.2 Local Changes

Local transformation work is ongoing in relation to the Community Mental Health Framework, both in
repsect to the access to services (as described earlier) and the mental health interventions.

3.3 What has gone well?

Reduction in use of out of area admission: With a focus over the last months on ensuring that for those
service users requiring inpatient care we are able to deliver this locally, we have placed an emphasis on
patient flow, with close working between our inpatient, intensive and community services in addition to
3" sector colleagues to unblock pathways and ensure that service users are able to access the right care
at the right time.

This has resulted in a significant decrease in out of division placements and overall the total at the end
of April for Wiltshire is 3. These have all required admission to Picu (psychiatric intensive care) due to
the acuity of their presentation. All are within AWP footprint.

In addition to the work force development plans discussed earlier we are also proactively recruiting a
number of overseas nurses to our inpatient wards, predominantly to our fountain way site. In order to
support their transistion and to assist them with adjusting to working in our acute inpatient settings we
are also piloting a leadership role that will oversee and support the international nurses, to assist them
gain their competencies and professional development with us.

AWP Inclusivity progress as we recently were recognised within the top 50 of UK organisations for our
inclusivity reaching 32 - fantastic recognition of our approach to recruitment and well being for staff.

Page 18



Avon and Wiltshire NHS Partnership Trust — Performance Update

Wiltshire Health Select Committee Date: 10" May 2023
4, Alternative Options

4.1 None.

5. Implications, Diversity Impact Assessment and Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

5.1 There are no financial and procurement implications contained within this report. Any emerging
financial and procurement implications will be detailed if the committee wishes to investigate
the issue further or to make recommendations for improvement.

Legal and Human Rights Implications

5.2 There are no legal and human rights implications contained within this report. Any emerging
legal and human rights implications will be detailed if the committee wishes to investigate the
issue further or to make recommendations for improvement.

All Other Implications (including Staff, Sustainability, Health, Rural, Crime and Disorder)

53 None.

Diversity Impact Assessment

5.4 None.

Risk Management

5.5 None.

6. Consultees

6.1 The

7. Background Papers
7.1 None.

8. Appendices

8.1 None.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Wiltshire Health Select Committee

“’ Better Care Fund Plan 2023-2025
&
Wiltshire Council o e e o %

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board



The Better Care Fund (BCF) programme supports local systems to successfully deliver the integration of
health and social care in a way that supports person-centred care, sustainability and better outcomes for
people and carers.

This vision is underpinned by 2 core objectives, to:
enable people to stay well, safe and independent at home for longer
(to improve quality of life and reduce pressure on Urgent and Emergency Care, acute and social care services)
This will be achieved through various mechanisms, including:
* collaborative working with the voluntary, housing and independent provider sectors
* investment in a range of preventative, community health and housing services
. ;Dusupporting unpaid carers
Q
nc(Dpvide people with the right care, at the right place, at the right time
t&Yackle immediate pressures in delayed discharges and demand for hospital attendances and admissions, bringing about
sustained improvements in outcomes for people discharged from hospital, and wider system flow. This will be achieved by
* embedding strong joint working between the NHS, local government and the voluntary, housing and independent provider
sectors.

Wl "‘Sh ire COUhCIl Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board




Total pooled fund of £65,511,569 in 2023-24. Spent across 66 schemes

1

ez abed

A jointly agreed plan between local
health and social care commissioners
and signed off by the HWB

implementing BCF policy objective 1:
enabling people to stay well, safe and
independent at home for longer

implementing BCF policy objective 2:
providing the right care, at the right
place, at the right time

This includes continued

maintaining NHS contribution to adult
social care (in line with the uplift to the
NHS minimum contribution to the BCF)
and investment in NHS commissioned
out of hospital services

The local authority and ICBs must agree a plan for their HWB area that includes:
agreement on use of mandatory BCF funding streams

an assessment of capacity and demand for intermediate care services
ambitions for making progress against the national metrics

The plan must be signed off by the HWB.

This national condition requires areas to agree a joint plan to deliver health and social care
services that support improved outcomes against the fund’s first policy objective

Includes implementation of the High Impact Change Model for transfers of care, which has
been integral to meeting BCF requirements around supporting discharge and supporting
the Urgent Emergency Care recovery plan.

local areas will be required to agree and submit a plan showing expected demand for
intermediate care services, services to support this recovery (including rehabilitation and
reablement) and expected capacity to meet this demand

Plans should set out the approach to investing in NHS out of hospital services locally, and
how health and local authority partners will work together to deliver it. Expenditure plans
should show the schemes that are being commissioned from BCF funding sources to
support this condition.



Governance

BSW Integrated Care Partnership
Wiltshire Council .
Wiltshire Alliance Partnership Committee Health 5:3"{’ V;ellbelng
oar

Cabinet
Wiltshire Alliance Delivery Group

Integrated Care Board

Living Well Group

_— Locality Mental Health,
All ages Learning Disability and

Starting Well; FACT Ops Urgent Care and Flow

Transformation &
improvement Operational
Delivery Group escalation

Families and children's
transformation programme;
family learning, parenting

Population Health Autism Group

Management e
Long Term Conditions Wiltshire focused

Prevention . programmes, Implementing
Anticipatory Care BSW work programmes

Personalisation Progress Community
Primary Care — links to Services Framework

PCOG _ {links to LD& and Thnve
(links to Elective Care Board) Boards)

vz abed

National programmes
delivery

Ageing Well Programme
Delivery of End of Life
Strategy in Wiltshire
(Links to Urgent Care and
Flow Board)

advice, relationship support,
the first 1000 days/ early
years and community health
services.

(links to Children and Young
Feople's Board)

Core Work Programmes and ! Health and Care Inequalities

Enabling Groups _ MNeighbourhood Collaboratives _I

Wl II'S h ire COU NcCi I Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board

(report directly to Partnership Committee) : Connecting with our Communities




* Joint funded BCF Commissioning Team

* Commissioning services, monitoring outputs of existing services and overseeing the planning and
delivery of the BCF in Wiltshire

* Integrated Services
* HomerFirst — Wiltshire Health and Care and Wiltshire Council’s reablement service working together to
support people to live independently in their own homes after a hospital discharge. This joint service
reduces the need for ongoing and/or significant packages of care for individuals.
* Integrated brokerage — brokering care for end of life care , complex continuing healthcare and social care
* Rapid Response service — supporting people to avoid admission to hospital

Gz obed

Wl II'Sh ire COU“C'I Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board




Themes

Reducing Inequalities
Hospital Discharge

& Avoidable Admissions

@

o Demand and capacity across intermediate care services

Support for Mental Health, LD and Autism

Use of the Voluntary Sector

Wiltshire Council LiH

Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board




METRICS

Transparency and clarity of BCF spending against BCF objectives, the metrics include the collection of activity
data, refreshed metrics and updated spending categories.

Discharge to usual place of residence
New: discharge metric ahead of winter 2023 — Discharge ready date v

New: Proportion of people discharged who are still at home after 91 days

<

& Proportion of older people who were still at home 91 days after discharge from
& hospital into reablement or rehabilitation services

N
~ Admissions to residential and care home

Unplanned admissions for ambulatory sensitive chronic conditions

LS X

v
V
New: Emergency hospital admissions due to falls in people over 65yrs v
v

New: Outcomes following short-term support to maximise independence

Wl II'S h ire COU NcCi I Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board




This page is intentionally left blank



62 abed

Health Select Committee

Forward Work Plan

Updated 23/06/2023

Health Select Committee — Current/Active Task Group

Task Group Details of Task Group Start Date Final Report
Expected
Inquiry session: Half day full committee session 19 July 2023 5 September 2023
System-wide review of factors contributing
to current pressures on urgent care.

Health Select Committee — Forward Work Plan

Report Author/Lead Officer

Meeting Item Details/Purpose of Report Corp. Director | Responsible Report
Date and/or Director | Cabinet Member | Author/Lead
and/or Director Officer
5 Sept 2023 | Integrated Care Centres To receive an update on the Fiona Slevin- CllIr lan Blair-
development and impact of the Brown, ICB Pilling
integrated care centres in Devizes
and Trowbridge.
5 Sept 2023 | Wiltshire Support at Home An update on the reablement service | Emma Legg ClIr Jane Davies

6 Wal epuaby



0€ abed

Date Item Details/Purpose of Report Corp. Director | Responsible Report
and/or Director | Cabinet Member | Author/ Lead
and/or Director Officer
5 Sept 2023 | Safe Accommodation Update on the recommissioning of Kate Blackburn | ClIr lan Blair- Hayley Morgan.
Funding Year 3 & 4 services Pilling PH Consultant—
(domestic abuse) vulnerable
communities
5 Sept 2023 | Primary Care Services An update on the recommissioning Kate Blackburn | CliIr lan Blair-
Contract of services Pilling
2 Nov 2023 | Health Improvement To provide an update on the work of | Kate Blackburn | CliIr lan Blair-
Coaches the health improvement coaches Pilling
2 Nov 2023 | NHS Health Check Annual update Kate Blackburn | CliIr lan Blair-
Pilling
2 Nov 2023 | Wiltshire Health Inequalities An introduction to the work and remit | Kate Blackburn | ClIr lan Blair- Gemma Brinn,
Group of the Wiltshire Health Inequalities Pilling PH Consultant
Group — Health
Improvement
(+ Peter
Collins, Chief
Medical Officer
or Tony Mears,
Assoc. Dir of
Strategy, SFT
Date Iltem Details/Purpose of Report Corp. Responsible Report
Dir/Director Cabinet Member | Officer/Lead
Officer
17 Jan Maternity Services Review to understand the impact of
2024 Transformation the transformation of maternity

services. Report on transformation
plans received Jan 2023.

2




T¢ obed

17 Jan KPI Six monthly review of Adult Social
2024 Care KPIs. Following presentation
in June 2023.
27 Feb Joint Strategic Needs Review trends for Wiltshire. Update | Kate Blackburn | Clir lan Blair-
2024 Assessment (JSNA) following presentation to committee Pilling
in Feb 2023.
Items for Meeting dates 2024/25
Meeting date | Item Details/Purpose of Report Corp. Cabinet Report
Director/ Member Author/Lead
Director Officer
March/April Joint Health and Progress Report 12 months after Kate David
2024 Wellbeing Strategy publication. Draft Strategy Blackburn Bowater
received by Committee Feb 2023.
Spring/Summer | Integrated Care Rapid Scrutiny of Implementation | Fiona Slevin-
2024 Strategy Plan, Integrated Care Strategy Brown
Meeting date ltem Details/Purpose of Report Corp. Cabinet Report
Director/ Member Author /Lead
Director Officer
Spring/Summer | Wiltshire Health & Care | Update following report received Fiona Slevin- CEO/Chair
2024 Service by Committee June 2023 Brown WHC
Spring/Summer | Avon & Wiltshire Mental | Update following report received Fiona Slevin- CEO/Deputy
2024 Health Partnership by Committee June 2023 Brown CEO AWP




Z¢ obed

Spring/Summer | NHS Dentistry Performance update to include Fiona Slevin- | Clir lan Blair-

2024 areas of deprivation Brown Pilling

Spring/Summer | Dementia Care Strategy | Update to understand impact of Emma Legg | Cllr Jane Robert
2024 strategy following presentation to Davies Holman

committee, June 2023.




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	39 Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership Trust

	8 Better Care Fund Plan
	9 Forward Work Programme

